

**CITY COMMISSION AGENDA  
CITY OF WINTER GARDEN  
TANNER HALL  
29 W. Garden Avenue**

**REGULAR MEETING**

**March 9, 2006**

**6:30 P.M.**

---

**CALL TO ORDER**

Roll Call and Determination of a Quorum  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

1. **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

Regular Meeting of February 9, 2006 and postponement of Regular Meeting of February 23, 2006

*Dispense as the City Commission and convene as the Community Redevelopment Agency*

2. Presentation by the Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory Board (CRAAB)  
Chairman and CRA Board Member Larry Cappleman

*Adjourn as the Community Redevelopment Agency and reconvene as the City Commission*

3. **FIRST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE**

A. **Ordinance 06-15:** VACATING THE EASTERLY THREE FEET OF THE FIVE FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE WESTERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 5 FEET ON THE NORTHERN PROPERTY LINE AND LESS 12.5 FEET ON THE SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINE OF 252 BLUE STONE CIRCLE, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE **with the second reading and public hearing on March 20, 2006** – City Planner Cechman

4. **FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE**

A. **Ordinance 06-11:** AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 05-24, RELATING TO THE REZONING OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 174.8 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED NORTH OF THE WESTERN BELTWAY AND EAST OF COUNTY ROAD 535, GENERALLY KNOWN AS THE FOWLER PROPERTY, FROM CITY R-1 TO CITY PCD, BY AMENDING SUBSECTION “t” OF SECTION 2 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 05-24 PERTAINING TO HOURS OF OPERATION PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE (Winter Garden Villages at Fowler Groves PCD Amendment) **with the second reading and public hearing on April 18, 2006** – City Planner Cechman

5. **SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCES**

A. **Ordinance 06-09:** AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT ORDER OF THE WINTER GARDEN VILLAGE AT FOWLER GROVES DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 174.8 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED NORTH OF THE WESTERN BELTWAY AND EAST OF COUNTY ROAD 535; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO CITY OF WINTER GARDEN DEVELOPMENT ORDER FOR WINTER GARDEN VILLAGE AT FOWLER GROVES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE – City Planner Cechman

B. **Ordinance 06-13:** VACATING THE NORTHERLY FOUR FEET OF THE TWENTY FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE SOUTHERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 10 FEET ON THE EASTERN AND WESTERN PROPERTY LINES OF 2008 HARBOR COVE WAY, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE – City Planner Cechman

- C. **Ordinance 06-14:** VACATING THE NORTHERLY THREE FEET OF THE TWENTY FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE SOUTHERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 10 FEET ON THE EASTERN AND WESTERN PROPERTY LINES OF 2014 HARBOR COVE WAY, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE – City Planner Cechman
- D. **Ordinance 06-08:** AMENDING CHAPTER 110 OF THE WINTER GARDEN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO SUBDIVISIONS BY AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS THEREOF: SECTION 110-3, STATE CERTIFICATION OR COUNTY COMPETENCY CARD REQUIRED; SECTION 110-4, CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE, GUARANTEE; RELEASE OF LIENS REQUIRED; SUBSECTIONS (1)O AND (8) OF SECTION 110-152, FINAL PLATS; APPLICATION, SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS, DOCUMENTATION, CONTENTS AND DATA REQUIRED FOR FINAL APPROVAL; SECTION 110-60, MODEL HOMES; SECTION 110-155, INITIAL COMMUNITY SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE REPORT; SECTION 110-156, SUBSEQUENT COMMUNITY SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE REPORTS AND MAINTENA – Public Works Director Smith
- E. **Ordinance 06-12:** AMENDING CHAPTER 78 OF THE WINTER GARDEN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO UTILITIES BY AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS THEREOF: SECTION 78-1. STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR WASTEWATER AND WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION; SECTION 78-35. TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE; SECTION 78-130. PRIVATE SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM CONNECTED TO POTW; SECTION 78-131. BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS; SECTION 78-133 ADMINISTRATION, PERMITS AND MONITORING; SECTION 78-264. IN-CITY SERVICE; AND SECTION 78-268. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF ALTERNATIVE WATER SOURCES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE – Utilities Director Tiblier

6. **REGULAR BUSINESS**

- A. Recommendation to approve final plat and maintenance agreement for West Point Townhomes – City Planner Cechman
- B. Recommendation to approve site plan for Winter Garden Village at Fowler Groves – City Planner Cechman
- C. Appointments to the Charter Review Committee

7. **MATTERS FROM CITIZENS**

8. **MATTERS FROM CITY ATTORNEY**

9. **MATTERS FROM CITY MANAGER** – Michael Bollhoefer

10. **MATTERS FROM MAYOR AND COMMISSIONERS**

**ADJOURN** to a regular meeting on **Monday, March 20, 2006**, at 6:30 p.m. at Tanner Hall

Please Note: In accordance with Florida Statutes 286.0105: Any person who desires to appeal any decision at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for this purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based, which such written record is not provided by the City of Winter Garden.

Also, in accordance with Florida Statute 286.26: Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the Office of the City Clerk, 251 W. Plant Street, Winter Garden, FL 34787, (407) 656-4111 x 2254 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

ORDINANCE 06-15

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; VACATING THE EASTERLY THREE FEET OF THE FIVE FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE WESTERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 5 FEET ON THE NORTHERN PROPERTY LINE AND LESS 12.5 FEET ON THE SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINE OF 252 BLUE STONE CIRCLE, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the owner of property generally known as 252 Blue Stone Circle, Winter Garden, Florida, has petitioned the City of Winter Garden to vacate the easterly three feet of the five foot drainage and utility easement adjacent to the westernmost side of said property, and

WHEREAS, after due consideration of public comment given at an advertised public hearing, the City has determined that the aforesaid easement is not needed,

THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:

**SECTION I** - The City of Winter Garden hereby vacates all interest in the aforesaid easement as legally identified as follows:

The easterly three feet of the westerly five foot drainage and utility easement, less five feet on the northern property line and less twelve and a half feet on the southern property line, of lot 70 of Westfield Lakes Subdivision, as recorded in Plat Book 36, Pages 35-37 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

**SECTION II** - Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void.

**SECTION III**: This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption at its second reading.

READ FIRST TIME: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_  
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk  
(252 Blue Stone Circle. VACATION Ord)

ORDINANCE 06-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 05-24, RELATING TO THE REZONING OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS 174.8 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED NORTH OF THE WESTERN BELTWAY AND EAST OF COUNTY ROAD 535, GENERALLY KNOWN AS THE FOWLER PROPERTY, FROM CITY R-1 TO CITY PCD, BY AMENDING SUBSECTION "t" OF SECTION 2 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 05-24 PERTAINING TO HOURS OF OPERATION PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE (Winter Garden Villages at Fowler Groves PCD Amendment).

**WHEREAS**, Isabel T. Fowler (as to her life estate) and Fowler Groves Limited Partnership, a Florida limited partnership (as to its fee simple interest), collectively hereinafter referred to as the "Owners", are the Owners of that certain real property located north of the western beltway and east of County Road 535 in Winter Garden, Florida, being more particularly described on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Property"); and

**WHEREAS**, Sembler Florida, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Developer"), is the contract purchaser and developer of the Property; and

**WHEREAS**, Developer is authorized to act as agent for Owners in connection with obtaining necessary approvals and permits for developing the Property and executing agreements in connection therewith; and

**WHEREAS**, on September 7, 2005 the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden approved Ordinance 05-24 which rezoned the Property from R-1 to PCD and provided for certain PCD requirements; and

**WHEREAS**, among the PCD requirements are the imposition of certain hours of operation in connection with commercial businesses within the Property; and

**WHEREAS**, the Owner and Developer of the Property has petitioned the City to amend the hours of operation as to certain businesses; and

**WHEREAS**, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, review by the City Staff and the Planning and Zoning Board, the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption of this Ordinance is appropriate; now, therefore,

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:

**SECTION 1. AUTHORITY.** The City Commission of the City of Winter Garden has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Chapter 166, Florida Statutes.

**SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends subsection "t" of Section 2 of Ordinance Number 05-24 as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

- t. Hours of Operation**--The hours of operation for any business to be open to the public shall be restricted to the following:
- Restaurants - 6:00 a.m. to midnight Sunday thru Thursday and 6:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday (or as may otherwise be limited by City ordinance)
  - Bars and Drinking Establishments - 8:00 a.m. to midnight Monday thru Thursday and 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday (or as may otherwise be limited by City ordinance or Charter)
  - Retail, Office, and Services - 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. (except that a home improvement facility located in the southeast corner of the Property and as depicted on an approved Development Plan, shall be permitted to operate between the hours of 6:30 a.m to 11:00 p.m.)
  - Entertainment – 8:00 a.m. to midnight Sunday thru Thursday and 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday (or as may otherwise be limited by City ordinance or Charter)
  - Gasoline Pumps – 24 hours a day
  - Convenience Stores (as defined by ITE) - 24 hours if operated in conjunction with Gasoline Pumps
  - Convenience Stores (as defined by ITE)—7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. if not operated in conjunction with Gasoline Pumps
  - ~~Daycares, Health Clubs/Spas, and Gymnasiums~~ – 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.
  - Health Clubs/ Spas, and Gymnasiums – 5:00 a.m. to 11:00
  - Loading Dock Activity – Except as to a home improvement facility located in the southeast corner of the Property and as such is depicted on an approved Development Plan, no loading dock activities or truck deliveries, including semi-tractor trailer deliveries, large truck service, and garbage collection, shall occur between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. As to said home improvement facility, no loading dock activities or truck deliveries, including semi-tractor trailer deliveries, large truck service, and garbage collection, shall occur between 10:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m.
- Hurricane Exception -- Upon written approval of the City Manager, the hours of operation of the home improvement facility may be extended for such period of time as provided in said written approval (however, not to extend for more than three days) in the event that the City may be subject to a Hurricane Watch issued by the National Hurricane Center or after a Hurricane Watch issued by the National Hurricane Center. Such extension will not require any action by the City Commission.

**SECTION 3. Remaining Ordinance** - All other restrictions, conditions, and matters in Ordinance 05-24 remain valid.

**SECTION 4. Effective Date.** This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by the City Commission and upon the effective date of Ordinance 05-24.

**SECTION 5. Severability.** If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Commission declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause,

phrase, or portion thereof, despite the fact that any one or more of section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion would be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

FIRST READING AND PUBLIC HEARING: \_\_\_\_\_ 2006.  
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING: \_\_\_\_\_ 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
Jack Quesinberry, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTESTED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk

**EXHIBIT "A"**

ORDINANCE 06-09

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT ORDER OF THE WINTER GARDEN VILLAGE AT FOWLER GROVES DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 174.8 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED NORTH OF THE WESTERN BELTWAY AND EAST OF COUNTY ROAD 535; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO CITY OF WINTER GARDEN DEVELOPMENT ORDER FOR WINTER GARDEN VILLAGE AT FOWLER GROVES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the State of Florida, as expressed in Chapter 380, Florida Statutes, to protect the natural resources and environment of the state, facilitate orderly and well planned development, and protect the health, welfare, safety and quality of life of the residents of the state; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has established land and water management policies to guide and coordinate local decisions relating to growth and development, and has determined that such policies should, to the maximum possible extent, be implemented by local governments through existing processes for the guidance of growth and development, and has also determined that all the existing rights of private property shall be preserved in accord with the constitutions of the State of Florida and the United States; and

WHEREAS, the Development of Regional Impact (“DRI”) review program has been established by the State of Florida in recognition that certain development projects will, because of their character, magnitude or location, have a substantial effect on the health, safety or welfare of the citizens of more than one county; and

WHEREAS, Isabel T. Fowler (as to her life estate) and Fowler Groves Limited Partnership, a Florida limited partnership (as to its fee simple interest), collectively hereinafter referred to as the “Owners”, are the Owners of that certain real property consisting of approximately 174.8 acres of land located north of the western beltway and east of County Road 535 located in Winter Garden, Florida, being more particularly described on attached Exhibit “A” incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, Sembler Florida, Inc., a Florida corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Developer”), is the contact purchaser and developer of the Property; and

WHEREAS, Developer is authorized to act as agent for Owners in connection with obtaining necessary approvals and permits for developing the Property and executing agreements in connection therewith; and

**WHEREAS, the Developer intends to develop a regional shopping center and other compatible uses on the Property as more specifically described in the “City of Winter Garden Development Order for Winter Garden Village At Fowler Groves,” adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 05-22 on September 7, 2005 (the “Development Order”), which said project is presently known as the “Winter Garden Village at Fowler Groves” (the “Project”); and**

**WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of Ordinance No. 05-22, the Developer and the City entered into the Daniels Road Northern Extension Agreement, as recorded in Official Records Book 8371, Page 3625, Public Records of Orange County, Florida, setting forth, inter alia, the responsibilities of the Developer and the City in regards to the extension and widening of Daniels Road (“Daniels Road Agreement”); and**

**WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of Ordinance No. 05-22, the Developer and the Florida Department of Transportation entered into a Transportation Proportionate Share Agreement, as recorded in Official Records Book 8437, Page 4276, Public Records of Orange County, Florida, establishing the Project’s “Proportionate Share” to mitigate the Project traffic impacts to State Road 50 and allow the Developer to comply with Rule 9J-2.045(7)(a)3, Florida Administrative Code (“FDOT Agreement”); and**

**WHEREAS, Developer desires to amend the Development Order to, inter alia, address the Department of Community Affairs concerns regarding inclusion of the Daniels Road Agreement and FDOT Agreement as exhibits to the Development Order and to include the Master Development Plan (Map H) as an exhibit to the Development Order; and**

**WHEREAS, Developer also desires to address certain scrivener’s errors in the Development Order that were not resolved when the project was downsized late in the application/approval process, memorialize certain Developer commitments for payments to City for recreational facilities, pedestrian facilities and fire facilities; and**

**WHEREAS, on January 19, 2006, the Developer submitted to the City, the East Central Florida Regional Planning Council, and the Bureau of State Planning, Department of Community Affairs, its Notification of a Proposed Change To a Previously Approved Development of Regional Impact with respect to the Project pursuant to subsection 380.06(19), Florida Statutes (the “NOPC”); and**

**WHEREAS, the NOPC has been reviewed by the East Central Florida Regional Planning Council and the City of Winter Garden, in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 380, Florida Statutes; and**

**WHEREAS, after public notice, due consideration of public comment at a public hearing, and consideration of the provisions of paragraphs (a) and (e), the thresholds set forth in paragraph (b), and the presumptions set forth in paragraphs (c) and (d) and subparagraph (e)3.,**

all of section 380.06, Florida Statutes, the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the changes proposed by Developer in the NOPC do not constitute a substantial deviation pursuant to section 380.06(19), Florida Statutes, and no further development of regional impact review is required as to said proposed changes; now, therefore,

**BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:**

**SECTION 1.** The City of Winter Garden has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Chapters 166 and 380, Florida Statutes.

**SECTION 2.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends the Development Order as provided for in the First Amendment To City of Winter Garden Development Order For Winter Garden Village At Fowler Groves attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference (the “First Amendment”) and hereby authorizes the Mayor, or in his absence, the Vice-Mayor, to execute the First Amendment after the execution thereof by Developer and Owners.

**SECTION 3.** The provisions of this Ordinance, including attached Exhibits “A” and “B”, are declared to be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall, for any reason, be held invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, such decision shall not be held to impair the validity, force or effect of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses or phrases or part thereof of this Ordinance. It being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any part.

**SECTION 4. Effective Date.** This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, however, the Development Order, as amended by the First Amendment, shall be effective as provided in Article VII, “Period of Effectiveness,” of the aforementioned Development Order.

**READ FIRST TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD:** \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

**READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD:** \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

PASSED AND ORDAINED this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2006, by the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden, Florida.

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

\_\_\_\_\_  
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk

EXHIBIT "A"—LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF FOWLER PROPERTY

**EXHIBIT “B”—FIRST AMENDMENT**

ORDINANCE 06-13

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; VACATING THE NORTHERLY FOUR FEET OF THE TWENTY FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE SOUTHERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 10 FEET ON THE EASTERN AND WESTERN PROPERTY LINES OF 2008 HARBOR COVE WAY, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the owner of property generally known as 2008 Harbor Cove Way, Winter Garden, Florida, has petitioned the City of Winter Garden to vacate the northerly four feet of the twenty foot drainage and utility easement adjacent to the northernmost side of said property, and

WHEREAS, after due consideration of public comment given at an advertised public hearing, the City has determined that the aforesaid easement is not needed,

THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:

**SECTION I** - The City of Winter Garden hereby vacates all interest in the aforesaid easement as legally identified as follows:

The northerly four feet of the southerly twenty foot drainage and utility easement, less ten feet on the eastern and western property lines, of lot 20 of Windermere Harbor Subdivision, Phase II, as recorded in Plat Book 48, Page 21 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

**SECTION II** - Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void.

**SECTION III**: This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption at its second reading.

READ FIRST TIME: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_

City of Winter Garden Commission Agenda  
March 9, 2006

**KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk**  
*(2008 Harbor Cove Way. VACATION Ord)*

ORDINANCE 06-14

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; VACATING THE NORTHERLY THREE FEET OF THE TWENTY FOOT DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE SOUTHERNMOST PROPERTY LINE, LESS 10 FEET ON THE EASTERN AND WESTERN PROPERTY LINES OF 2014 HARBOR COVE WAY, WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the owner of property generally known as 2014 Harbor Cove Way, Winter Garden, Florida, has petitioned the City of Winter Garden to vacate the northerly three feet of the twenty foot drainage and utility easement adjacent to the northernmost side of said property, and

WHEREAS, after due consideration of public comment given at an advertised public hearing, the City has determined that the aforesaid easement is not needed,

THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:

**SECTION I** - The City of Winter Garden hereby vacates all interest in the aforesaid easement as legally identified as follows:

The northerly three feet of the southerly twenty foot drainage and utility easement, less ten feet on the eastern and western property lines, of lot 19 of Windermere Harbor Subdivision, Phase II, as recorded in Plat Book 48, Page 21 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

**SECTION II** - Should any portion of this Ordinance be held invalid, then the entire Ordinance shall be null and void.

**SECTION III**: This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption at its second reading.

READ FIRST TIME: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_

City of Winter Garden Commission Agenda  
March 9, 2006

**KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk**  
*(2014 Harbor Cove Way. VACATION Ord)*

**ORDINANCE NO. 06-08**

**AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 110 OF THE WINTER GARDEN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO SUBDIVISIONS BY AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS THEREOF: SECTION 110-3, STATE CERTIFICATION OR COUNTY COMPETENCY CARD REQUIRED; SECTION 110-4, CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE, GUARANTEE; RELEASE OF LIENS REQUIRED; SUBSECTIONS (1)O AND (8) OF SECTION 110-152, FINAL PLATS; APPLICATION, SUPPLEMENTARY MATERIALS, DOCUMENTATION, CONTENTS AND DATA REQUIRED FOR FINAL APPROVAL; SECTION 110-60, MODEL HOMES; SECTION 110-155, INITIAL COMMUNITY SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE REPORT; SECTION 110-156, SUBSEQUENT COMMUNITY SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE REPORTS AND MAINTENANCE; AND SECTION 110-171, ACCESS PROVISIONS AND GATE DESIGN STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.**

**WHEREAS**, the public health, safety and welfare require the harmonious, orderly, and progressive development of land within the corporate limits of the City of Winter Garden, Florida (the "City"); and

**WHEREAS**, once the subdivision of land has been shaped into building lots, blocks, and streets, the correction of defects is costly and difficult; and

**WHEREAS**, substantial public responsibility is created by each new subdivision, including, but not limited to, the maintenance of public streets and the provision of additional public services; and

**WHEREAS**, the general welfare, health, safety, and convenience of the community is directly affected by the use of land as a subdivision; and

**WHEREAS**, due to the City's rapid growth and proliferation of subdivisions, it is necessary to revisit potential deficiencies in the City's policies and regulations pertaining to the platting and subdivision of land; and

**WHEREAS**, it is in the direct interest of the public that subdivisions are conceived, designed and developed in accordance with sound rules and proper minimum standards; and

**WHEREAS**, appropriate guidelines and development management mechanisms, along with uniform standards and regulations pertaining to the platting and subdivision of land, are necessary to ensure the orderly, efficient and environmentally sound subdivision of land; and

**WHEREAS**, it is within the police power of the City to regulate and proscribe rules in the interest of the health, safety and general welfare of the residents of the City; and

**WHEREAS**, the City desires to amend and clarify existing ordinances concerning subdivisions and the platting of land within the City; and

**WHEREAS**, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption of this Ordinance is necessary and appropriate to advance and serve the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Winter Garden, Florida; now, therefore,

**BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:**

**SECTION 1. Authority.** The City Commission of the City of Winter Garden has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Chapter 166, Florida Statutes.

**SECTION 2.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-3 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-3. State certification or county competency card required.**

For the purpose of this chapter, no contractor or subcontractor shall do work within the city limits unless such contractor or subcontractor has the appropriate state certification, if doing general contractor or subcontractor work, or a county competency card, if doing underground utility contractor or subcontractor work.

**SECTION 3.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-4 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-4. Contractor's insurance, guarantee; release of liens required.**

(a) *Insurance.* Pursuant to this chapter, the contractor shall maintain the proper insurance during the life of his contract, to hold the city free from any and all claims due to the contractor's acts, his agents, assigns or assignees, in no less than the following minimums:

- (1) Workers' compensation insurance.
- (2) Public liability insurance of \$500,000.00.
- (3) Property damage of \$100,000.00.

(b) *Guarantee.* The contractor and property owner shall guarantee all materials, workmanship, and equipment for any improvement dedicated or conveyed to the city, whether in a subdivision or otherwise, for a period of one year from the date of final acceptance by the city. If any such defect or damage due to the materials, workmanship, and equipment is shown within the one-year period, the contractor or property owner shall replace or repair such at no cost to the city. This guarantee shall be secured by ~~an acceptable~~ irrevocable letter of credit, or other guarantee, acceptable by the city in the amount of ~~ten~~ twenty percent of the contract cost of the improvement dedicated or conveyed to the city.

(c) *Liens.* The city shall not accept any improvements until release of liens is furnished for all labor and materials.

**SECTION 4.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends subsection (1)o. of Section 110-152, captioned "Final plats; application, supplementary materials, documentation, contents and data required for final approval," of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

o. When a subdivision provides screening walls, landscaping, sidewalks, or other amenities within the public right-of-way and such is acceptable to the city in the city's sole discretion, a license agreement shall be required between the city, the developer and/or the homeowners association and such license agreement shall be referenced on the plat. Such license agreement shall be reviewed by the city as part of the preliminary plat process. Unless otherwise provided for in the license agreement, the developer and the HOA, jointly and severally, shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of any such amenities constructed in the public right-of-way, and in no event shall the city be prohibited from removing such amenities within the public right-of-way in its sole and absolute discretion (such removal being at the cost of the developer and HOA, jointly and severally).

**SECTION 5.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends subsection (8) of Section 110-152, captioned "Final plats; application, supplementary materials, documentation, contents and data required for final approval," of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

(8) An original maintenance guarantee in favor of and acceptable to the city. Subject to approval by the city engineer, said maintenance guarantee may be provided after final plat approval, but before issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Said guarantee shall, at a minimum, be in the amount of ~~120~~ twenty percent of the contract cost of the required subdivision improvements to be dedicated to the city and provide for the guarantee of all materials, workmanship, and equipment for any improvement dedicated to the city for at least a period of one year from the date of final acceptance by the city.

**SECTION 6.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-60 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-60. Model Homes.**

Except as otherwise provided for in this section, no building permit shall be issued until such time as a certificate of completion has been issued by the city engineer and final plat approval has been obtained. A subdivider may be allowed to obtain one (1) building permit for a model home for each twenty (20) lots located within a proposed subdivision prior to the issuance of a certificate of completion by the city engineer and final plat approval, provided the subdivider executes a hold harmless agreement to the city's satisfaction and provides the performance guarantee required by section 110-152(7). Notwithstanding the permitted rate for model homes, the maximum number of building permits for model homes to be allowed in any one subdivision shall not exceed ten (10). In addition, the following shall apply for lots where model homes are allowed:

- (1) The lots upon which the model homes are constructed shall be located within three hundred (300) feet of an active and approved fire hydrant and Florida Department of Environmental Protection has approved the clearance for the water system; and
- (2) Main sewer and water lines for said lots shall be installed by the developer and be subject to review and approval by the city and approved for clearance by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection; and
- (3) The lots shall have a minimum of twenty (20) foot wide emergency access road extending from a paved public street to within fifty (50) feet of the proposed structure, as approved by the city engineer.
- ~~(4)~~(4) A certificate of occupancy will not be issued on any model home permitted by this section until the city engineer has issued a certificate of completion pursuant to section 110-152(2)a.

**SECTION 7.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-155 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-155. Initial community subdivision infrastructure report.**

No earlier than 180 days before turnover, the HOA must retain the services of a Florida registered engineer experienced in subdivision construction to inspect the community subdivision infrastructure and prepare a report recommending the amount of scheduled maintenance and unscheduled repair for the subsequent ~~three~~ five years that likely will be needed for each component of the community subdivision infrastructure (specifically, at a minimum and as may be applicable, providing for the roads, street lights, side walks and drainage system (which includes, without limitation, the stormwater detention/retention areas and underdrains)), ~~in accordance with standards that may be established and revised from time to time by the city engineer or his or her designee,~~ which recommends the amounts of money that should be deposited each year in the routine-community subdivision infrastructure-maintenance account, and determining what repairs, if any, are needed prior to turnover of the HOA. The HOA shall pay the cost associated with the preparation of the initial community subdivision infrastructure report, and the HOA may pay such cost from the routine-community subdivision infrastructure-maintenance account. The report must be signed and sealed by the engineer, certified to the HOA ~~and the city~~ and provided to all owners of lots, blocks, and tracts within the subdivision ~~and the city engineer~~ within 15 days after its completion. Any needed repairs or replacements identified by the report shall be completed by the developer, at the developer's sole expense, prior to turnover. If turnover occurs and the foregoing requirements have not been fulfilled, the rights of the HOA, any of its members, ~~the city,~~ and any and all owners of land within the subdivision to enforce these requirements against the developer shall survive the turnover, with the prevailing party to be entitled to attorneys' fees and costs. Notwithstanding the foregoing and without limiting the city's remedies, the city shall be entitled to withhold the issuances of certificates of occupancy or building permits for improvements within the subdivision until such time as the provisions of this section are met.

**SECTION 8.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-156 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-156. Subsequent community subdivision infrastructure reports and maintenance.**

The HOA shall obtain an inspection and written report of the community subdivision infrastructure, by a Florida registered engineer experienced in subdivision construction at least once every ~~three~~ five years after the initial

engineer's inspection required by section 110-155. Using good engineering practice, ~~and in accordance with standards that may be established and revised from time to time by the city engineer or his or her designee,~~ or in accordance with such other standards as may be adopted from time to time by the HOA, or in accordance with such standards as the HOA's engineer may determine to be appropriate, the inspection shall determine and the written report shall document the level of maintenance and repair (both scheduled and unscheduled) needed, the amounts of funding needed each year for the next ~~three~~ five years in the routine-community subdivision infrastructure-maintenance account to pay for such maintenance and repair, and any repairs then needed. The report must be signed and sealed by the engineer, certified to the ~~city and the~~ HOA, and provided to all owners of lots, blocks, and tracts within the subdivision ~~and the city engineer~~ within 15 days after its completion. Within one hundred eighty days of receipt of each five year ~~tri-annual~~ report, the HOA shall complete all remedial work identified and recommended by the engineer. A completion report, signed, sealed and certifying that said remedial work has been completed, shall be submitted to the HOA and to all owners of lots, blocks, and tracts within the subdivision ~~city engineer~~ 90 days thereafter.

**SECTION 9.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 110-171 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 110-171. Access provisions and gate design standards.**

(a) *Emergency vehicle access.* Entryway gates and other restricted access gates must be equipped with an emergency vehicle access system inspected and approved by the city police chief and city fire chief before such gates may be closed. After initial approval is obtained from the city police chief and the city fire chief, said emergency vehicle access system may be inspected, from time to time, to ensure that said gates and emergency vehicle access systems are acceptable and in good working order. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the fire chief or police chief may require an existing emergency vehicle access system to be updated, modified, or replaced in light of changes in technology, policy, or change in equipment used by the police department or fire department. In the event such change is requested by the fire chief or police chief, the requested change must be made within the time specified, and, if necessary for the health, safety, and welfare, the fire chief or police chief may require such gates to remain in an open position until such changes are affected and approved.

(b) *Master entry device.* The entryway gate must provide a key pad device by which police, fire and rescue personnel, code enforcement officers, environmental protection workers and, if the residential subdivision is served by city utilities or public works, city utility and public works workers, may gain access to the residential subdivision. The access code, and such changes to the access code, must be provided to the city police chief, city fire chief, city utilities director, city public works director, and the city manager. Said access code must be provided before the entryway gate may be closed.

(c) *Gate design standards.* Electrically operated gates shall be designed to default to the "open position" in the event of a power failure. Said gates shall remain open until such time as power is restored. Swinging gates for single-direction traffic shall open toward (i.e., swing into) the property being entered. After passing through a gate, the nearest curb of any cross street shall be no closer than 40 feet from said gate. Access for single direction traffic shall be unobstructed to the following dimensions: 16 feet wide and 13.5 feet high. Access for bi-directional traffic shall be unobstructed to the following dimensions: 24 feet wide and 13.5 feet high. No gate shall be installed where access requires the use of a proximity reader or card, unless a turn-out is provided for its use. Direction limiting devices, such as fixed tire spikes, are prohibited. No more than one vehicle access control device or system through which emergency vehicles must pass to reach any address within the residential subdivision shall be permitted.

(d) *Maintenance and compliance.* Maintenance of the emergency vehicle access system and the compliance with the requirements of this section is the responsibility of the HOA, violation of which may result in removal of the gates at the cost of the HOA, code enforcement action and a lien on each of the lots within the residential subdivision.

(e) *Gate hours.* Provided the provisions of this section are fully complied with by the HOA, the gates may be closed during daytime and nighttime hours. All gates are required to be open during daytime hours unless physically and continuously manned by HOA designated security personnel during said hours.

(f) *Existing gated communities.* Gated communities existing as of the effective date of this ordinance or which are annexed into the city, shall, at a minimum, comply with the provisions of subparagraph (a) above within one year of

the effective date of this article or annexation into the city and, unless in full compliance with the provisions of this section, shall be required to have the gate open during daytime hours unless physically and continuously manned by HOA designated security personnel during said hours. ~~comply with subparagraph (e) above upon the effective date of this article.~~

**SECTION 10. Severability.** Should any part, including but not limited to any section, subsection, sentence, phrase or portion of this Ordinance be held invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining part of this Ordinance, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared severable. The City Commission declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each part, thereof, despite the fact that any one or more part or portion of this Ordinance would be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

**SECTION 11. Codification.** It is the intention of the City Commission of the City that the provisions of Section 2 through Section 9 of this Ordinance shall be codified and made a part of the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances; and that Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to "Chapter," "Section," "Article" or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention; and regardless of such inclusion in the code is accomplished, Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the correction of typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by the City Manager, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or recodified copy of same with the City Clerk.

**SECTION 12. Effective Date.** This Ordinance shall become effective upon its final adoption.

READ FIRST TIME: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_  
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk

**ORDINANCE NO. 06-12**

**AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 78 OF THE WINTER GARDEN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO UTILITIES BY AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS THEREOF: SECTION 78-1. STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR WASTEWATER AND WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION; SECTION 78-35. TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE; SECTION 78-130. PRIVATE SEWAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM CONNECTED TO POTW; SECTION 78-131. BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS; SECTION 78-133 ADMINISTRATION, PERMITS AND MONITORING; SECTION 78-264. IN-CITY SERVICE; AND SECTION 78-268. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF ALTERNATIVE WATER SOURCES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE**

**WHEREAS**, the City of Winter Garden, Florida (the "City") desires to keep current its Ordinances for consistency with budget practices and manning requirements driven by operational needs of the Department; and

**WHEREAS**, Regulatory and Environmental considerations result in the need for periodic changes in the rules governing the manner in which business is conducted ; and

**WHEREAS**, the delivery of high quality and efficient services to the Utilities customers of the City are integral to the mission of the Utilities Department, the City Manager and the City Commission; and

**WHEREAS**, references to other public agencies and documents require periodic revisions to keep our ordinances consistent; and

**WHEREAS**, subsequent revisions are also deemed warranted my staff and shall be offered as supplemental to this Ordinance to complete the Utilities Ordinance Update process and deal specifically with policy matters concerning Revisions to Utilities Standards and Simplification of Fee Schedules, while the intent of this Ordinance is regarded as a matter of "housekeeping"; and

**WHEREAS**, the day to day involvement of the City Engineer in the conduct of utilities Department business has been rendered unnecessary with the requirement that the Utilities Director must possess Engineering Licensure ; and

**WHEREAS**, after public notice and due consideration of public comment, the City Commission of the City of Winter Garden hereby finds and declares the adoption of this Ordinance is necessary and appropriate to advance and serve the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Winter Garden, Florida; now, therefore,

**BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF WINTER GARDEN, FLORIDA:**

**SECTION 1. Authority.** The City Commission of the City of Winter Garden has the authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to Chapter 166, Florida Statutes.

**SECTION 2.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-1 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-1. Standards and specifications for wastewater and water main construction.**

There is adopted by the city for the purpose of establishing minimum acceptable standards for the design and construction of water distribution and transmission facilities and wastewater collection and transmission facilities in the city that certain Orange County, Florida, Manual of Standards and Specifications for Wastewater and Water Main Construction, most recent edition, and Appendix E to the Orange County Manual of Regulations,

Specifications and Standards for Wastewater and Water Main Construction, save and except such portions as are deleted, modified or amended from time to time. Such manual and appendix shall apply to all proposed water and wastewater mains to be owned, operated or maintained by the city. One copy of each is filed in the office of the City Clerk. It is adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out in length in this section. If the Orange County, Florida, Manual of Regulations, Specifications and Standards for Wastewater and Water Main Construction or appendix of that manual conflict with any section of this Code, the Code section shall take precedence.

(Code 1988, § 22-1)

Secs. 78-2--78-25. Reserved.

**SECTION 3.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-35 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-35. Temporary water service.**

(a) Temporary service, such as service for circuses, fairs, carnivals, construction work and the like, shall be rendered upon written application accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of \$15.00 for a five-eighths-inch by three-fourths-inch to one-inch meter or \$25.00 for a larger meter, plus a deposit sufficient to cover the city's estimate of the water to be consumed, materials, labor and any other expense incurred by the city in rendering such service, plus a replacement cost deposit equal to the cost of replacing the meter and appurtenances. Upon termination of the service, any balance of the deposit shall be refunded to the consumer.

(b) Bulk sales of water can be arranged with the Utilities Department. The rate for such sales will be \$3.00 per thousand gallons with a minimum charge of \$25.00 per month.

(c) When water utilized cannot be metered, the Utilities Director will estimate the volume, which will be sold at the rates established in this section.

(Code 1988, § 22-25)

**SECTION 4.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-130 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-130. Private sewage collection system connected to POTW.**

(a) Before commencement of construction, reconstruction, enlargement, modification or improvement of a private sewage collection system connected to a POTW, the owner shall first obtain a written permit signed by the City Manager. The application for such permit shall be made on a form furnished by the city, which the applicant shall supplement by any plans, specifications and other information as are deemed necessary by the City Manager. A permit and inspection fee shall be paid to the city at the time the application is filed.

(b) The type, capacities, location and layout of a private sewage collection system connected to a POTW shall comply with all requirements of the city Utilities Department and the department of engineering.

(c) A permit for a private sewage collection system connected to a POTW system shall not become effective until the private sewage collection system is completed and has been inspected and approved by the utilities Director, or designee. The utilities Director shall be allowed to inspect the work at any stage of construction and, in any event, the applicant for the permit shall notify the Utilities Director when the work is ready for final inspection and before any underground portions are covered. The inspection shall be made within two days, excluding Saturday, Sunday and holidays, of the receipt of notice by the Utilities Director.

(d) All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection of the private sewage collection system shall be borne by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the city from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation or connection of the private sewage collection system.

(e) The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage collection system in a sanitary and effective manner at all times, at no expense to the city. Private sewers shall be maintained so as to preclude the entrance of excessive amounts of infiltration and inflow. If it is determined by the Utilities Director that excessive amounts of infiltration/inflow are entering the public sewer from a private sewage collection system, the owner shall be responsible for determining the cause and for making all necessary repairs to the system, to the Utilities Director's satisfaction. All work shall be done by a contractor experienced in sewer rehabilitation work and acceptable to the Utilities Director. Televising of the private sewer lines and submission of TV logs shall be required if determined necessary by the Utilities Director. All operation, maintenance, and repair of private lift stations and pumping facilities shall be done by a reputable person experienced in the operation, maintenance and repair of such facilities, and upon demand the owner shall furnish such proof as the Utilities Director deems necessary. The city shall have

the right to inspect all private sewage collection systems and appurtenances and to cause discontinuance of sewer service if the private sewage collection is not maintained in a sanitary and effective operating condition or if the public sewer facilities may be harmed thereby.

(f) The city shall be responsible for the maintenance of the public sewer and for providing service to receive the approved sewer discharge from the private sewage collection system.  
(Code 1988, § 22-80)

**SECTION 5.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends subsection (l) of Section 78-131. captioned “Building sewers and connections.” of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken-out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

(l) Garages and other establishments where gasoline is used or where wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or where any flammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients can be discharged and which are connected with municipal sewers shall be provided with a suitable trap or separator. All traps or separators shall be of a type and capacity approved by the Utilities Director and shall be located so as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.

**SECTION 6.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-133 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken-out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-133. Administration, permits and monitoring.**

(a) If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated in section 78-132 and which may have a deleterious effect on the public sewer system, processes, equipment or receiving waters or which otherwise create a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the city, via the Utilities Director, may:

- (1) Reject the wastes.
- (2) Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition prior to discharge to the public sewers.
- (3) Require control over the quantities and rates of discharges.
- (4) Require payment pursuant to this section and subsection, to cover the added cost of handling and treating the wastes not covered by existing taxes or sewer charges. The class descriptions and permitting fee shall be as follows:

TABLE INSET:

Class	Description
1	EPA categorical industries local pollutant dischargers
2	Grease dischargers
3	Dischargers requiring a spill containment plan
4	Nonindustrial dischargers

- a. Class 1 users shall obtain a permit prior to discharge, and periodic site visits will be made by the city prior to any permit renewal. Class 1 users shall also submit a spill containment plan to the city.
- b. Class 2 users shall have an annual inspection by the city, and a permit may be required for these users.
- c. Class 3 and 4 dischargers are not required to have a permit, although their permit applications shall be kept on file pending a status change or reclassification.
- d. Any user or industry storing hazardous or toxic chemicals on site shall submit a spill containment plan to the city.
- e. All class 1 users shall be assessed a permit fee of \$50.00 and a renewal fee of \$50.00. There shall be no permit application fee and no fee assessed for the random sampling and compliance monitoring expenses incurred by the city; provided, however, that the sampling fees assessment as outlined in subsection (e) of this section shall be in full force and effect at all times.
- f. If the Utilities Director permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, the design and installation of the plans and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the Utilities Director, and subject to the requirements of all applicable codes, ordinances, and laws. Where preliminary treatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective operation by the permit holder at his expense as required by this section.
  - (b) Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Utilities Director, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts, or any flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients. All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the Utilities Director and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.
  - (c) Requirements for industrial wastewater discharge permits shall be as follows:
    - (1) Permit required. An industrial wastewater discharge permit shall be required of every industry whose discharge might contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated in section 78-132 or whose discharge might have an adverse impact or deleterious effect on any portion of the public sewer system.
    - (2) Existing industrial wastewater dischargers. Dischargers of industrial wastewater into the city's sewer system prior to the effective date of the ordinance from which this article derives are granted temporary authority to continue to discharge industrial wastewaters in compliance with the city's codes, regulations, and policies. This temporary authority shall expire 90 days after the date of notification by the Utilities Director of the requirement for a discharger to make application for an industrial wastewater discharge permit. In no case shall this temporary authority extend beyond 90 days after the effective date of the ordinance from which this article derives. If, prior to the expiration date, the discharger has filed for an industrial wastewater discharge permit pursuant to subsections (c)(1) and (c)(4) of this section, its temporary authority to discharge will continue. In such case, this temporary authority shall expire on the date the industrial wastewater discharge permit is issued or denied. Any person discharging pursuant to the temporary authority provided in this subsection is subject to all sections of this article, and such authority may be suspended or revoked in accordance with the terms and procedures set forth in section 78-134.
    - (3) Compliance required. No permit holder shall discharge industrial wastewater in excess of the quantity, rate of discharge, or quality conditions specified in the permit. Any person desiring to modify his discharge which would violate conditions of his permit shall apply for an amended permit.

- (4) Permit applications. Existing and proposed new industrial users seeking a permit shall complete and file with the city an application in the form prescribed by the city. Proposed new industrial users shall file their applications at least 90 days prior to their discharging to the POTW. The applicant shall submit, where appropriate, the following:
- a. The name, address, telephone number, and location if different from the address of the applicant, the owner of the premises from which industrial wastes are intended to be discharged, and the name of a local representative duly authorized to act on behalf of the company.
  - b. SIC number according to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, Bureau of the Budget, 1972, as may be amended.
  - c. Average daily and three-minute peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly and seasonal variations if any.
  - d. Schedule of all industrial process waste flows produced before and after pretreatment, if any, at the premises, including the daily volume and wastewater constituents and characteristics as determined by representative samples and analyses done by a qualified laboratory acceptable to the city and in accordance with Standard Methods.
  - e. Estimated time and duration of discharge within a 20-percent tolerance.
  - f. Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans and details to show all sewers, sewer connections, and appurtenances by the size, location and elevation.
  - g. Each product produced by type, amount, process or processes and rate of production.
  - h. Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per day).
  - i. Number and type of employees, and hours of operation of the plant and proposed or actual hours of operation of the pretreatment system.
  - j. Any other information as may be deemed by the city to be necessary to evaluate the permit application.
  - k. Permit fees as determined by the Utilities Director, and pursuant to this section.
  - l. A compliance schedule for meeting categorical pretreatment standards, the following conditions of which shall apply:
    1. The schedule shall contain increments of progress in the form of dates for the commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the industrial user to meet the applicable categorical pretreatment standards (e.g., hiring an engineer, completing preliminary plans, completing final plans, executing contract for major components, commencing construction, completing construction, etc.).
    2. No increment referred to in this section shall exceed nine months.
    3. Not later than 14 days following each date in the schedule and the final date for compliance, the industrial user shall submit a progress report to the control authority including, at a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment of progress to be met on such date and, if not, the date on which it expects to comply with this increment of progress, the reason for delay, and the steps being taken by the industrial user to return the construction to the schedule established. In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress reports to the city.
- (5) Processing and issuance of permits.
- a. The Utilities Director will act only on applications that are accompanied by a report which contains all of the information required in subsection (c)(4) of this section. A person who has filed an incomplete application will be notified by the Utilities Director that the application is deficient and the nature of such deficiency and will be given 30 days to correct the deficiency. Upon receipt of complete applications, the Utilities Director shall review and evaluate the applications and shall propose such special permit conditions as he deems advisable. All industrial wastewater discharge permits shall be expressly subject to all sections of this article and all other applicable ordinances, laws, and regulations.
  - b. Upon completion of his evaluation, the Utilities Director shall notify the applicant of any special conditions which he proposes be included in the permit. The applicant shall have 30 days from and after the date of the Utilities Director's recommendations for special permit conditions to review such and file written objections with the Utilities Director regarding any such special permit conditions. The Utilities Director may, but shall not be required to, schedule a meeting with applicant's authorized representative within 15 days following receipt of the applicant's objections, and attempt to resolve disputed issues concerning special permit conditions. If the applicant files no objections to special permit conditions proposed by the Utilities Director or if a subsequent agreement is reached concerning such, the Utilities Director shall issue an industrial wastewater discharge permit to the applicant with such special conditions incorporated therein.
  - c. Issuance of a permit shall not relieve the discharger from complying with all applicable laws, regulations, and ordinances promulgated by other government authority, nor shall the issuance of a permit be construed as a representation by the city that the discharge permitted therein complies with all of such laws, regulations and ordinances. Permits are issued solely to govern the discharge of wastewater into the public sewer system and the applicable receiving waters, as between the discharger and the city, and shall not be construed to benefit any third party.

(6) Permit requirements and restrictions. The requirements and restrictions in permits shall be uniformly enforced by the city and may include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

- a. The maximum permissible concentration of wastewater constituents.
- b. Limits on rate and time of discharge, or requirements for flow regulation and equalization.
- c. Requirements for inspection, flow metering and sampling facilities, and alternative sampling methods.
- d. Pretreatment of industrial wastewater before discharge.
- e. Compliance schedules.
- f. Specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, frequency and method of sampling, flow metering, number, types and standards of tests and reporting schedule.
- g. Prohibition of discharge of certain wastewater constituents.
- h. Requirements for submission of periodic discharge reports to include information concerning volume, rate of flow, constituent concentration, peak flow rates, hours of operation, number of employees, or other information.
- i. Requirements for maintaining and retaining plant records relating to wastewater discharge as specified by the city, and affording city access thereto; any industrial user subject to the reporting requirements established in this section shall maintain records of all information resulting from any monitoring activities required by this section. Such records shall include for all samples:
  1. The date, exact place, method, and time of sampling and the names of the person taking the samples;
  2. The dates analyses were performed;
  3. Who performed the analyses;
  4. The analytical techniques/methods used; and
  5. The results of such analyses.

Any industrial user subject to the reporting requirements established in this section shall be required to retain for a minimum of three years any records of monitoring activities and results, whether or not such monitoring activities are required by this section, and shall make such records available for inspection and copying by the Utilities Department. This period of retention shall be extended during the course of any unresolved litigation regarding the industrial user or POTW, or when requested by any state or federal agency.

j. Requirements for notification of the city for any new introduction of wastewater constituents or any substantial change in the volume or character of the wastewater constituents being introduced into the wastewater treatment system.

k. Requirements for notification of slug discharge or accidental discharges.

l. Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the city to ensure compliance with this article. The city may require that any or all of the pretreatment requirements or restrictions be provided by the user at his expense.

(7) Pretreatment requirements. If pretreatment is required through the issuance of industrial wastewater discharge permit, users of the POTW shall design, construct, operate, and maintain such wastewater pretreatment facilities whenever necessary to reduce, modify, or eliminate the user's wastewater discharge to achieve compliance with the limitations in wastewater strength set forth in section 78-132, to meet applicable national pretreatment standards or to meet any other wastewater condition or limitation contained in the user's permit. If required by the city, plans, specifications, and operating procedures for such wastewater pretreatment facilities shall be prepared by a registered professional engineer and shall be submitted to the Utilities Director for review. Prior to beginning construction of such pretreatment facilities, the user shall submit a set of final construction plans and specifications to the Utilities Director. Prior to beginning construction, the user shall also secure such building, plumbing, or other permits that may be required by the city. The user shall construct the pretreatment facility within the time provided in the user's wastewater discharge permit. Following completion of construction, the user shall provide the Utilities Director with as-built drawings. Neither filing of the plans nor the issuance of a permit shall be construed to indicate that the city in any way vouches for or warrants the performance capabilities of any facilities constructed pursuant to such plans, specifications, or data. Subsequent alterations or additions to such pretreatment or flow-control facilities shall not be made without prior notice to the city.

(8) Duration. Permits shall be issued for any specified period of time, not to exceed five years.

(9) Modification. The terms and conditions of any permit may be subject to modification and change by the city during the life of the permit to accommodate changed conditions and as local, state, regional, and federal laws, rules and regulations and case decisions are modified or amended or for a variation in reported data as provided in subsection (j) of this section. Permit holders shall be informed of any proposed changes in their respective permits at least 60 days prior to the effective date of change and shall be allowed to comment relating to any of the proposed changes in their permits within the first 30 days after issuance of such proposed change by the city. The city shall allow a discharger a reasonable period of time to comply with any changes in the permit required by the city, unless otherwise required by emergency or governmental regulations. The permit holder may petition the city for modification of the permit based on changed conditions. The Utilities Director shall review such petitions with such supporting data as he deems necessary and shall take appropriate action.

(10) Transferability. A separate permit shall be required for each wastewater connection discharging, directly or indirectly, into the sewer system. For each discharger having multiple connections at a single plan or facility, a single permit shall be required which may set forth specific effluent limitations and conditions for discharge from each separate connection. Wastewater discharge permits are issued to a specific user for a specific operation. A wastewater discharge permit shall not be assigned or transferred or sold to a new owner, new user, or for different premises, unless approved by the Utilities Director, and any such attempted assignment, transfer, or sale shall be void and of no effect.

(d) Each industrial user shall be required to establish a spill containment plan. The plan shall contain the following elements:

(1) Accidental discharges. Each user shall provide protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or other substances regulated by this article. Facilities to prevent accidental discharge of prohibited materials shall be provided and maintained at the owner's or user's own cost and expense. Detailed plans showing facilities and operating procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the city for review and shall be approved by the city before construction of the facility. All existing users shall complete such a plan by the date as specified by the industrial wastewater discharge permit. No new user who begins discharge to the POTW after the effective date of the ordinance from which this article derives shall be permitted to introduce pollutants into the system until accidental discharge procedures have been approved.

(2) Telephone notification. Any person causing or suffering any discharge, whether accidental or not, which presents or may present an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health and welfare of persons, to the environment, or which is likely to cause interference with the POTW shall notify the Utilities Director immediately by telephone. In the absence or unavailability of the Utilities Director, notification shall be given to the city employee then in charge of the treatment works.

(3) Written report. Within five days following such occurrence, the user shall provide the Utilities Director with a detailed written report describing the cause of the dangerous discharge and measures to be taken by the user to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, fish kills, or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, civil penalties, or other liability which may be imposed by this article or other applicable law. Furthermore, the industrial user shall control its production or all its discharges to the extent necessary to maintain compliance with all applicable city, state and federal regulations upon reduction, loss, or failure of its treatment facility, and until the facility is completely restored or an alternative and equally effective method of pretreatment is provided. This requirement applies in the situation where, among other things, the primary source of power of the treatment facility is reduced, lost or fails.

(4) Notice to employees. A notice shall be permanently posted on the user's bulletin board or other prominent place advising employees whom to call if a dangerous discharge occurs. Employers shall ensure that all employees who may cause or suffer such a dangerous discharge to occur are advised of the emergency notification procedure.

(e) Annual operation costs of the city's POTW for activities required under this section shall be recovered, at the city's option, through fees charged to the industries and users. Each user may be billed for each scheduled, unscheduled, or demand monitoring visit performed. The billing may include direct costs incurred by the city or its authorized agent in sampling, inspecting, and laboratory analyses, adjusted to reflect administrative, legal and other indirect costs incurred by activities that may be required under this section. All self-monitoring costs incurred by any user, these self-monitoring costs including but not limited to the cost of sampling, analysis, and reporting, shall be borne by the user.

(f) When required by the Utilities Director, the owner of any property serviced by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install at his expense an industrial sampling station according to the design as approved by the Utilities Director together with such necessary approved meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling, and measurement of the wastes. Such industrial sampling station, when required, shall be accessibly and safely located and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved by the Utilities Director. The industrial sampling station shall be installed by the owner at his own expense, and shall be maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible at all times.

(g) Special requirements shall be as follows:

(1) The city reserves the right to require an industrial user to submit a monthly or quarterly certified statement to the city, on forms provided by the city, of the characteristics of its industrial wastes discharged in the sewer and sewage works of the city, or to any sewer connected therewith. Such documents shall be filed with the city not later than the tenth day of the month following the month or quarter for which the report is required, or any as may be specified in the user's permit, and shall contain the following certification:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons

directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

(2) The city reserves the right to sample industrial wastewater or to use any and all available information to determine which industrial users shall be subject to the requirements of this section.

(3) Any industrial user may be required to provide wastewater monitoring facilities, at the user's sole cost, and as provided in this article. All monitoring reports shall be based on an appropriate amount of sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the report. If sampling and analysis by the industrial user indicate a violation of a pretreatment or discharge standard, the industrial user shall repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of both analyses to the control authority within 30 days from the industrial user's receipt of the results of the original sampling. The industrial user shall notify the control authority within 24 hours of any violation of an applicable pretreatment or discharge standard.

(h) The Utilities Director and other duly authorized employees of the city bearing proper credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purposes of inspection, observations, measurement, sampling and testing in accordance with this article. The Utilities Director shall also be authorized to enter any premises of any industrial user in which a discharge source or treatment system is located or in which records are required to be kept, to ensure compliance with pretreatment standards. Upon a showing satisfactory to the Utilities Director by a person furnishing a report, permit application, or questionnaire, those portions of any document which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall, to the extent allowable by law, be made available to the public pursuant to section 308(b) of the act. This information shall be distributed according to the procedures set by the Utilities Director.

(i) While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in this section or other sections of this article, the Utilities Director or duly authorized employees of the city shall observe all safety rules applicable to the premises established by the company. The company, to the extent allowed by law, shall be held harmless from injury or death to the city employees for intentional or negligent acts solely caused by the city employees, and the city shall indemnify the company against loss or damage to its property by city employees and against liability claims and demands for personal injury or property damage asserted against the company and growing out of the gauging and sampling operation, for intentional or negligent acts solely caused by the city employees.

(j) All measurements, tests and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to which reference is made in this article shall be determined in accordance with 40 CFR 136 and shall be determined at the control industrial sampling station provided or upon suitable samples taken at the control sampling station. If no special sampling station has been required, the control sampling station shall be considered to be the nearest downstream manhole in the public sewer to the point at which the building sewer is connected. Sampling shall be carried out by customarily accepted methods to reflect the effect of constituents upon the sewer system and to determine the existence of hazards to health, safety and welfare. Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical pretreatment standards or for a new source following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the POTW, any industrial user subject to pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to the city a report containing the information described in this section and section 78-84. For industrial users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established by the city, this report shall contain a reasonable measure of the user's longterm production rate. For all other industrial users subject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production or other measure of operation, this report shall include the user's actual production during the appropriate sampling period.

(1) Any industrial user subject to a categorical pretreatment standard, after the compliance date of such pretreatment standard, or, for a new source, after commencement of the discharge into the POTW, shall submit to the city during the months of June and December, unless required more frequently in the pretreatment standard or by the city, a report indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effluent which are limited by such categorical pretreatment standards. In addition, this report shall include a record of measured or estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting period for the discharge, except that the city may require more detailed report of flows. At the discretion of the city and in consideration of such factors as local high or low flow rates, holidays, budget cycles, etc., the city may agree to alter the months during which such reports are to be submitted.

(2) Where the city has imposed mass limitations on industrial users, the report required by subsection (j)(1) of this section shall indicate the mass of pollutants regulated by pretreatment standards in the discharge from the industrial user.

(3) For industrial users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established by the city, the report required by subsection (j)(1) of this section shall contain a reasonable measure of the user's longterm production rate. For all other industrial users subject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed only in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production or other measure of operation, the report required by subsection (j)(1) of this section shall include the user's actual average production rate for the reporting period.

(4) All such reports and any and all baseline monitoring reports, final compliance reports, and periodic reports on continued compliance must be signed and certified by a duly authorized representative of the industrial user.

(k) The permit holder shall make measurements, including but not limited to flow rates, flow volumes, BOD and suspended solids concentrations as well as concentrations of other particular constituents of the industrial wastewater discharges, at his own expense, as frequently as necessary to comply with the terms and conditions of each permit. If measurements or other investigations indicate that the industrial user has discharged wastewater which has constituents significantly different in quantity or quality from those stated by the discharger, the discharger shall furnish all information in his possession relevant to the apparent variance.

(l) No statement contained in this article shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or arrangement between the city and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the city for treatment, subject to special payment therefore, by the industrial concern; provided, however, that at no time will the city be asked to accept such discharges that, in the city's sole judgment, would violate any local, state, or federal pretreatment standard.

(m) Any provision or section of this article to the contrary notwithstanding, the city reserves the absolute right to deny or condition new or increased contributions of pollutants or changes in the nature of pollutants to the POTW by industrial users when such contributions do not meet applicable pretreatment standards and requirements or when such contributions would cause the POTW to violate its NPDES permit.

(Code 1988, § 22-83)

**SECTION 7.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-264 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-264. In-city service.**

Reclaimed water service shall be provided for properties located within the City Reclaimed Service Water Territory on a first priority basis, which comply with the provisions for such service as set forth in this article. Reclaimed water service shall be available to these properties within the city as the transmission and distribution systems are extended and reclaimed water becomes available.

(Ord. No. 01-52, § 2, 7-26-01)

**SECTION 9.** The City of Winter Garden hereby amends Section 78-268 of the Winter Garden Code of Ordinances as follows (words that are ~~stricken out~~ are deletions; words that are underlined are additions):

**Sec. 78-268. Restrictions on use of alternative water sources.**

No person shall install a new irrigation well to serve property where reclaimed water distribution facilities are available; nor shall any person utilize potable water for irrigation through a new or existing lawn meter on property where reclaimed water distribution facilities are available. Existing private irrigation systems which connect to the reclaimed water system and are presently served by an on-site well or other water source shall disconnect the well or other water source permanently. Dual or temporary connections of wells to irrigation systems served by reclaimed water are not permitted. Dual or temporary connections may be made to natural surface waters or artificially created surface impoundments as permissible by FDEP when declared exempt by the director. The director may make such declaration of exemption as to a limited area or particular lake or as to a particular property or class of properties (i.e., commercial, multi-family, etc.) and for such a limited time period as determined necessary by the Utilities Director to serve and protect the public interest. In making such determinations, the Utilities Director shall consider, among other things, the following factors:

- (1) Whether city-wide reuse irrigation utilization is high;
- (2) Whether such irrigation would not be detrimental to the body of water; and
- (3) Whether the particular property or class of properties has the physical means to take water from the body of water using available facilities which can be isolated from other piping systems so as not to pose cross connection control problems. A declaration of exemption issued under this section shall not exempt the user or property from compliance with all other regulatory requirements of the St. Johns River Water Management District, State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the City of Winter Garden, and all other applicable local, regional, state, or federal agencies.

(Ord. No. 01-52, § 2, 7-26-01)

**SECTION 10. Severability.** Should any part, including but not limited to any section, subsection, sentence, phrase or portion of this Ordinance be held invalid or unconstitutional by the final decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining part of this Ordinance, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared severable. The City Commission declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each part, thereof, despite the fact that any one or more part or portion of this Ordinance would be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

**SECTION 11. Codification.** It is the intention of the City Commission of the City that the provisions of Section 2 through Section 9 of this Ordinance shall be codified and made a part of the City of Winter Garden Code of Ordinances; and that Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to "Chapter," "Section," "Article" or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention; and regardless of such inclusion in the code is accomplished, Sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the correction of typographical errors which do not affect the intent may be authorized by the City Manager, without need of public hearing, by filing a corrected or recodified copy of same with the City Clerk.

**SECTION 12. Effective Date.** This Ordinance shall become effective upon its final adoption.

READ FIRST TIME: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

READ SECOND TIME AND PUBLIC HEARING HELD: \_\_\_\_\_, 2006.

APPROVED:

\_\_\_\_\_  
JACK QUESINBERRY, Mayor/Commissioner

ATTEST:

\_\_\_\_\_  
KATHY GOLDEN, City Clerk